

Pre-service mathematics teachers' understanding of "being able to understand but unable to solve"

Commented [U1]: The title is straight forward and clear.

Abstract: As for the phenomenon that high school students "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems, existing studies mainly focus on front-line teaching, but no one has explored the understanding of pre-service mathematics teachers from the perspective of pre-service training. In this paper, 30 postgraduates and undergraduates from the School of Mathematics and Statistics of Shandong Normal University were interviewed to investigate their understanding of this phenomenon. The results showed that most pre-service mathematics teachers believed that "students' insufficient grasp of knowledge", "students' rigid problem-solving ideas, no effective problem-solving strategies" and "teachers' lack of emphasis on problem-solving methods" were the main reasons. "Teachers should let students pay attention to reflection and review and summary", "teachers should pay attention to training students' mathematical thoughts and methods" and "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of classic examples and multiple solutions to one problem" are the main countermeasures. Combined with previous studies, it can be concluded that: (1) Most pre-service mathematics teachers have shortcomings in rationality and comprehensiveness in their understanding of high school students' "being able to understand but unable to solve". (2) It is necessary to train pre-service mathematics teachers.

Commented [U2]: How was this sample size obtained, what is the research design and the instruments used? Some key components of the abstract is missing, such as methods, sampling technique, research approach, key finding and conclusion.

Keywords: Senior High School Mathematics, Pre-service Teachers, being Able to Understand but Unable to Solve, Cognitive Degree, Cultivation Suggestion

1. Introduction

Ordinary High School Mathematics Curriculum Standards (2017 Edition, 2020 Revision) (Formulated by the Ministry of Education of the People's Republic of China, 2020) points out that the academic quality is the basis of the corresponding examination proposition. Whether it is high school graduation examination, college entrance examination or college independent admission examination, it is inseparable from the form of examination questions to examine students. At present, many scholars have found in front-line teaching that many high school students appeared "being able to understand but unable to solve" phenomenon. Students reflect that they can understand the teacher's teaching in class, but always can not solve mathematics problems independently. This phenomenon not only frustrated students' self-confidence, affected

Commented [U3]: While the author(s) made mentioned of "many scholars....this statement needs references to support it.

Commented [U4R3]:

students' learning, but also adversely affected teachers' teaching. Most of the current studies are from the perspective of front-line teaching, and no one has explored the reasons and countermeasures from the perspective of pre-service mathematics teachers. Pre-service mathematics teachers are the main force of mathematics teaching in high schools in the future. Whether their understanding of this problem is accurate will greatly affect the quality of mathematics teaching in high schools in the future. Therefore, it is necessary to study pre-service mathematics teachers' understanding of "being able to understand but unable to solve".

Commented [U5]: Provide references.

2. Literature Review

It is a common teaching phenomenon that high school students "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems. Many scholars have done research on this phenomenon, and the existing research mainly focuses on "why students can't solve problems" and "how to cultivate students' problem-solving ability".

In terms of reasons, Li et al.(add year) believe that students do not grasp basic knowledge well (Li, 2024; Liang, & Zhang, 2024; Huang, 2024, Bai, 2024). Huang et al.(add year) believed that students' problem-solving ideas were rigid and there were no effective problem-solving strategies (Huang, 2024; Meng, 2024; Yang, 2024; Wang, 2024; Zhu, 2023; Li, 2023). Meng et al. believe that students lack the ability to examine questions and have difficulties in understanding the questions(Huang, 2024; Meng, 2024; Yang, 2024; Zhu, 2023). Yan et al. believe that teachers lack a variety of teaching methods(Huang, 2024; Yan, 2024). Wang et al. believe that teachers' professional quality and teaching ability need to be improved (Yan, 2024; Wang, 2023). Li et al. believe that students' mathematical thinking methods need to be improved(Yan, 2024; Liang, 2023; Li, 2023).

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [U6]: These references refer to what statement since Li et al. (year) "believe that students do not grasp basic knowledge well"

In terms of countermeasures, Zhu et al. believe that teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' mathematical ideas and methods(Li, 2024; Liang, & Zhang, 2024; Meng, 2024; Yan, 2024; Yang, 2024; Fu, 2023; Huang, 2023; Liang, 2023; Zhu, 2023; Li, 2023; Wang, 2023). Bai et al. believe that teachers should pay attention to the teaching of classic examples and multiple solutions to one problem (Li, 2024; Bai, 2024; Wang, 2024; Li, 2024; Yang, 2024; Wu, & Wu, 2024; Zhou, 2023; Li, 2023; Li, 2023; Wang, 2023). Liang et al. think that teachers should pay attention to imparting basic knowledge (concept, theorem and formula, etc.) (Liang, & Zhang, 2024; Huang, 2024; Yan, 2024; Bai, 2024; Yang, 2024; Zhou, 2023; Cairang, 2023; Huang, 2023; Li, 2023; Li, 2023; Wang, 2023; Zhang, 2023); Huang et al. believe that teachers should let students pay attention to reflection, review and summary (wrong questions, knowledge points, etc.) (Huang, 2024; Bai, 2024; Yang, 2024; Liang, 2024; Zhu, 2024; Li, 2024; Li, 2024; Zhang, 2023). Yang et al. believe that teachers should pay

attention to cultivating students' ability of examining questions(Li, 2024; Liang, & Zhang, 2024; Huang, 2024; Meng, 2024; Yang, 2024; Yan, 2024; Bai, 2024; Yang, 2024; Zhou, 2023; Cairang, 2023; Yang, 2023; Huang, 2023; Liang, 2023; Zhu, 2023; Li, 2023; Li, 2023; Zhao, 2023). Liang et al. believe that teachers should select exercises and pay attention to variable exercises(Liang, 2023; Zhu, 2023). Yang et al. believe that teachers should pay attention to the teaching of problem-solving steps, methods and skills (Liang, & Zhang, 2024; Huang, 2024; Wang, 2024; Yang, 2024; Zhou, 2024; Zhang, 2023).

Commented [U7]: The In-text citations are not in APA format and should be check well and do the needful.

After reading relevant articles, it can be found that there are many reasons and countermeasures for students' inability to solve problems. The following reasons have been mentioned more often in previous studies: students have rigid problem-solving ideas and no effective problem-solving strategies; students lack the ability to examine the questions and have difficulty in understanding the topics; teachers lack a variety of teaching methods; teachers' professional quality and teaching ability need to be improved; students don't have a solid grasp of basic knowledge; students' mathematical thinking and methods need to be improved. The details are shown in Table 1.

Table 1

Reasons summary

Reasons	Frequency
Students have rigid problem-solving ideas and no effective problem-solving strategies	6
Students lack the ability to examine the questions and have difficulty in understanding the topics	5
Teachers lack a variety of teaching methods	5
Teachers' professional quality and teaching ability need to be improved	5
Students don't have a solid grasp of basic knowledge	5
Students' mathematical thinking and methods need to be improved	4

Note: The number indicates the frequency with which an opinion appears in the article.

The following strategies are often mentioned in previous studies: teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' mathematical thoughts and methods; teachers should pay attention to the teaching of classic examples and multiple solutions to one problem; teachers should focus on teaching basic knowledge (concepts, theorems, formulas, etc.); teachers should let students pay attention to reflection, review and summary (wrong questions, knowledge points, etc.); teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' ability of examining questions; teachers should select exercises and pay attention to

variable exercises; teachers should pay attention to the steps, methods and skills of problem solving. The details are shown in Table 2.

UNDER PEER REVIEW

Table 2*Cuntermesure summary*

Cuntermesure summary	Frequency
Teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' mathematical thoughts and methods	18
Teachers should pay attention to the teaching of classic examples and multiple solutions to one problem	17
Teachers should focus on teaching basic knowledge (concepts, theorems, formulas, etc.)	16
Teachers should let students pay attention to reflection, review and summary (wrong questions, knowledge points, etc.)	16
Teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' ability of examining questions	15
Teachers should select exercises and pay attention to variable exercises	11
Teachers should pay attention to the steps, methods and skills of problem solving	11

Note: The number indicates the frequency with which an opinion appears in the article.

As can be seen from the above research, although there have been many researches on the phenomenon of high school students "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems, most of them are thought and summarized from the perspective of front-line teaching, which are some experiences gradually discovered and summarized by teachers after they enter the job. So far, no one has explored the reasons and countermeasures for this problem from the perspective of pre-service mathematics teachers (referring to undergraduate mathematics teachers and graduate students in mathematics education who will be engaged in the teaching profession).

Teachers are the inheritors and disseminators of knowledge, the developers of students' intelligence and the shapers of their personalities, and the "engineers of the soul". In the process of education, teachers are the educators, leaders and organizers of students' physical and mental development. Previous studies have mentioned that "teachers' professional quality and teaching ability need to be improved" is one of the main reasons for students' inability to solve problems. If mathematics teachers can clearly understand the reasons and countermeasures for high school students' "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematical problems before taking office, they can timely deal with such problems after entering the office. This can not only reflect the professional quality

of teachers, but also help students to learn mathematics. Therefore, it is very necessary to study whether pre-service mathematics teachers can correctly understand the phenomenon that high school students "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems, so that they can improve their teaching skills and professional quality as much as possible before entering the job.

This paper aims to explore the problems existing in the training of pre-service mathematics teachers by investigating their understanding of the phenomenon of "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems in high school students, and provide solutions to this problem from the perspective of pre-service mathematics teacher training for the reference of educators.

The main research questions of this paper are:

- (1) How aware are pre-service mathematics teachers of the phenomenon that high school students "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems?
- (2) What are the current problems in the training of pre-service mathematics teachers?
- (3) Based on questions 1 and 2, how should we train pre-service mathematics teachers?

Commented [U8]: The research questions have been formulated well and are linked to the title.

3. Research Method

Commented [U9]: What is the research method or approach used in this study?

3.1 Samples

This study selected 30 graduate students majoring in subject teaching (mathematics) and 30 undergraduate students majoring in mathematics and applied mathematics from the School of Mathematics and Statistics of Shandong Normal University as the investigation objects. As pre-service mathematics teachers, all of them have the idea of becoming front-line teachers in high schools in the future.

Commented [U10]: How was the number 30 selected? Provide justification for this sample.

3.2 Tools

Interview method can obtain direct and reliable information and materials, easily provide in-depth and detailed information, and is not limited by written language. Combined with the research questions and contents, this study adopts the interview method to conduct the investigation, and the interview outline is designed as follows:

- (1) In your study career, have you ever encountered the phenomenon of "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems? If so, how often?
- (2) What do you think are the reasons for this phenomenon?

(3)How do you think this phenomenon should be solved?

The [interview above](#) questions can directly reflect the pre-service mathematics teachers' understanding of the phenomenon of "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems, which is convenient for further investigation and research.

3. 3 Data collection

In order to make the collected information more reliable and credible, the author interviewed all the survey subjects one by one. The interview contents were recorded in the whole process with the permission of the survey subjects, and sorted out one by one after the interview.

3. 4 Content Processing

The first step is to transcribe all the interview recordings of the survey subjects into text materials, and arrange them in strict accordance with the original words during the transcription process. These texts are then encoded, with letters representing their meanings, and those with similar meanings are grouped together. For example, the letter A stands for "students' insufficient grasp of knowledge", so that similar ideas such as "students' incomplete grasp of knowledge" and "students' insufficient understanding of knowledge" can be expressed by the letter A. Then, the percentage of the occurrence was calculated to obtain the understanding of the reasons and countermeasures for the phenomenon of pre-service mathematics teachers.

The second step is to compare the contents of the survey with previous studies. If the meaning expressed in the survey result is the same or similar to that expressed in the previous studies, it is considered that the survey object is aware of this view; otherwise, it is considered that the survey object is not aware of this view. Count how many times each item is mentioned and make a statistical table for analysis.

The third step is to analyze the answers of pre-service mathematics teachers and explore the comprehensiveness and rationality of pre-service mathematics teachers' views.

4. Result Analysis

Commented [U11]: The results have not spelt out clearly which research question it is addressing.

4.1 Preservice mathematics teachers' understanding of the reasons for this phenomenon

According to the survey, 93.33% of pre-service mathematics teachers think that "students' grasp of knowledge is not enough", 56.67% think that "students' ability to use knowledge is not enough", 43.33% think that "students do not do enough questions and lack training", 36.67% think that "students have problems in learning methods". 33.33% think that "students do not understand their own problems", 23.33% think that "mathematics problems are difficult", 26.67% think that "teachers do not emphasize the method of solving problems." The details are shown in Table 3.

UNDER PEER REVIEW

Table 3*Preservice mathematics teachers' understanding of the reasons*

Aspect	Implication	Frequency	Percent
Students	Students' grasp of knowledge is not enough	28	93. 33
	Students' ability to use knowledge is not enough	17	56. 67
	Students do not do enough questions and lack training	13	43. 33
	Students have problems in learning methods	11	36. 67
	Students do not understand their own problems	1	3. 33
Mathematical problems	Mathematics problems are difficult	7	23. 33
Teachers	Teachers do not emphasize the method of solving problems	8	26. 67

Among the reasons mentioned in previous studies, 93. 33% of pre-service mathematics teachers could realize that "students don't have a solid grasp of basic knowledge ", 56. 67% could realize that "students have rigid problem-solving ideas and no effective problem-solving strategies", and 26. 67% could realize that "students' mathematical thinking and methods need to be improved ". Other points of view are not recognized by most pre-service mathematics teachers. The details are shown in Table 4.

Table 4*Comparison of reasons*

The reasons mentioned before	Percent
Students have rigid problem-solving ideas and no effective problem-solving strategies	56. 67
Students lack the ability to examine the questions and have difficulty in understanding the topics	0
Teachers have a single teaching method	0
Teachers' professional quality and teaching ability need to be improved	0
Students don't have a solid grasp of basic knowledge	93. 33
Students' mathematical thinking and methods need to be improved	26. 67

UNDER PEER REVIEW

4. 2 Preservice mathematics teachers' understanding of the countermeasures of this phenomenon

The survey found that 73.33% of pre-service mathematics teachers believed that "students should increase the amount of practice", 56.67% believed that "students should reflect and summarize in time", 33.33% believed that "students should listen carefully in class", 16.67% believed that "students should preview before class", 13.33% believed that "students should communicate more with teachers and classmates". 6.67% think that "students should think independently", 3.33% think that "students should carefully examine the questions", 30% think that "teachers should pay attention to the inspiration of students' ideas and methods", 20% think that "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of typical examples", 6.67% think that "teachers should give students enough time in class". 3.33% think that "teachers should pay attention to variable practice". The details are shown in Table 5.

Table 5

Preservice mathematics teachers' understanding of the countermeasures

Aspect	Implication	Frequency	Percent
Students	Students should increase the amount of practice	22	73.33
	Students should reflect and summarize in time	17	56.67
	Students should listen carefully in class	10	33.33
	Students should preview before class	5	16.67
	Students should communicate more with teachers and classmates	4	13.33
	Students should think independently	2	6.67
	Students should carefully examine the questions	1	3.33
Teachers	Teachers should pay attention to the inspiration of students' ideas and methods	9	30.00
	Teachers should pay attention to the teaching of typical examples	6	20.00
	Teachers should give students enough time in class	2	6.67
	Teachers should pay attention to variable practice	1	3.33

It can be seen that pre-service mathematics teachers mentioned more countermeasures for students, although there are also countermeasures for teachers, but the overall number is less than that for students. In other words, most pre-service mathematics teachers believe that the solution to the problem is to get students to change more.

Among the countermeasures given, 56.67% of pre-service mathematics teachers could realize that "teachers should let students pay attention to reflection, review and summary (wrong questions, knowledge points, etc.)", 30% could realize that "teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' mathematical thoughts and methods", 20% could realize that "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of classic examples and multiple solutions to one problem". Only 3.33% can realize that "teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' ability of examining questions" and "teachers should

select exercises and pay attention to variable exercises". The other views are almost unknown to most pre-service mathematics teachers. The details are shown in Table 6.

Table 6
Comparison of countermeasures

The reasons mentioned before	Percent
Teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' mathematical thoughts and methods	30.00
Teachers should pay attention to the teaching of classic examples and multiple solutions to one problem	20.00
Teachers should focus on teaching basic knowledge (concepts, theorems, formulas, etc→.)	0
Teachers should let students pay attention to reflection, review and summary (wrong questions, knowledge points, etc→.)	56.67
Teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' ability of examining questions	3.33
Teachers should select exercises and pay attention to variable exercises	3.33
Teachers should pay attention to the steps, methods and skills of problem solving	0

5. Result Discussion

The following will discuss the understanding degree of pre-service mathematics teachers from the perspectives of comprehensiveness and rationality.

5.1 The discussion for the reasons

The following will be discussed from two aspects: comprehensiveness and rationality.

5.1.1 Comprehensiveness

The "students' poor grasp of basic knowledge" mentioned in previous studies is highly consistent with the "students' insufficient grasp of knowledge" in interview materials,

Commented [U12]: Discussion has not been done according to the research questions formulated for the study. Even the results displayed have not been supported by literature to the findings and these should be looked at carefully to make the paper contribute to knowledge in academia and also interest to readers.

Commented [U13]: Provide references as justifications from the literature to support your findings.

which is also the most mentioned reason by pre-service mathematics teachers, accounting for 93.33%. In this regard, the vast majority of pre-service mathematics teachers have a good understanding. The meaning of "students' rigid problem-solving ideas and no effective problem-solving strategies" mentioned in previous studies is similar to that of "students' insufficient ability to use knowledge" in interview materials. 56.67% of pre-service mathematics teachers were aware of this. The meaning of "students' mathematical thinking and methods need to be improved" mentioned in previous studies and "teachers do not emphasize the problem-solving methods in place" mentioned in interview is similar, but only 26.67% of pre-service mathematics teachers can realize this point. However, "students lack the ability to examine questions and have difficulties in understanding the topics", "teachers have a single teaching method", and "teachers' professional quality and teaching ability need to be improved", were not reflected in the interview materials, that is to say, basically all pre-service mathematics teachers were not aware of these points.

From the comparison between the survey results of pre-service mathematics teachers and the previous studies, it can be seen that most pre-service mathematics teachers are more consistent with their predecessors on the three viewpoints of "students do not grasp basic knowledge", "students have rigid problem-solving ideas and no effective problem-solving strategies" and "students' mathematical thinking and methods need to be improved". However, most pre-service mathematics teachers did not realize the three viewpoints mentioned by predecessors, "students' ability to examine the problem is insufficient and it is difficult to understand the topic", "teachers' teaching method is single" and "teachers' professional quality and teaching ability need to be improved".

As for students' problem-solving ability, Meng believes that the cultivation of problem-solving ability has always been a key point in high school mathematics teaching, as well as a prerequisite for improving students' problem-solving efficiency and accuracy (Tang, 2024). Mathematics has a high degree of abstraction and logical rigor. Only with enough ability of examining and reading questions can we clarify the known conditions, the results to be obtained and the hidden information in the questions. If teachers ignore the cultivation of students' ability of examining questions in the course of teaching, it will not help students to solve problems independently. Liang and Zhang (2024) believe that teaching with a single teaching method may lead to boredom in the classroom, which is not conducive to students' independent problem-solving. (Liang & Zhang,

Commented [U14]: If your results is similar to previous studies please provide reference(s) to back this statement.

Commented [U15]: Add year to the author's statement.

2024). The use of various teaching methods by teachers can better meet the needs of different students, enhance the enthusiasm of students in learning, and improve the teaching effect, such as inquiry learning and cooperative learning. In *the Opinions on Carrying Forward the Spirit of Educators and Strengthening the Construction of High-quality Professional Teachers in the New Era*, the State Council clearly proposes to improve teachers' professional quality, improve teachers' discipline ability and discipline accomplishment, and enhance teachers' teaching and educating ability. A highly professional teacher can obviously have a more professional way of dealing with students who can understand but cannot solve mathematics problems.

5. 1. 2 Rationality

In addition to the above, some pre-service mathematics teachers also put forward some other views on the reasons:

Some pre-service mathematics teachers think that the current mathematics problems are very difficult, which is reflected in the various types of questions, high flexibility, strong comprehensiveness, etc. The new college entrance examination focuses on students' thinking and ability, and pays attention to the achievement of students' core literacy in mathematics. Therefore, the difficulty of mathematics problems will indeed be higher than before.

However, most pre-service mathematics teachers think that the students do not practice enough. That is to say, teachers advocate the so-called "question sea tactics". This view is obviously unreasonable.

Firstly, "question sea tactics" may not be able to achieve the ideal effect. The number of questions in the new college entrance examination in 2024 has been reduced, and the comprehensions have been further increased. The last multiple-choice question is an innovative comprehensive examination of the properties of functions and plane analytic geometry, which does not belong to any graph (line, circle, ellipse, hyperbola, parabola, etc.) that students have learned. A new definition of fractional series is given, and a comprehensive investigation is carried out in combination with the knowledge of probability and counting principle. The examination of conic curve in the solution question is placed in the position of 16 questions, and it's less difficult than before. All these

changes show that the college entrance examination pays more and more attention to the investigation of students' mathematical thinking and mathematical ability, and pays more attention to the achievement of students' mathematical core accomplishment. In the so-called "question sea tactics" in a large number of exercises will inevitably have a lot of repetitive and homogeneous content, which is easy to solidify students' thinking, the formation of a thinking set, which is not conducive to the cultivation of students' creative thinking and thinking divergence, it is difficult for students to play their own strength in the new college entrance examination situation.

Secondly, "question sea tactics" itself has drawbacks that can not be ignored. Cheng believes that the question-sea tactics will cause students' anxiety, wear down students' patience and inhibit students' creativity (Cheng, 2024). A lot of exercises are bound to take up a lot of time for students and teachers. Students have to spend a lot of time to solve the problems, teachers also have to spend a lot of time to explain the problems, which will undoubtedly increase the teacher's teaching pressure and students' learning pressure. Students immersed in the "question sea tactics" for a long time may feel tired, leading to a decline in interest in learning, and then affect the enthusiasm and initiative of learning.

we cannot deny that with the increase of the amount of practice, students' mastery of knowledge will be improved, but to solve the phenomenon of "being able to understand but unable to solve" by "question sea tactics" is not feasible.

Some pre-service mathematics teachers also mentioned problems with students' learning methods. As mentioned in the teaching suggestions of *Ordinary High School Mathematics Curriculum Standards(2017 Edition, 2020 Revision)* (Formulated by the Ministry of Education of the People's Republic of China, 2020), "In teaching practice, we should constantly explore and innovate teaching methods, pay attention not only to how to teach, but also to how to learn, guide students to learn mathematics and develop good learning habits. " In other words, the problem of students' learning is essentially the problem of teachers' teaching. Therefore, the idea that there is something wrong with students' learning methods is not profound enough.

5. 2 The discussion for the countermeasures

The following will be discussed from two aspects: comprehensiveness and rationality.

5. 2. 1 Comprehensiveness

The "teachers should let students pay attention to reflection, review and summary (wrong questions, knowledge points, etc.)" mentioned in previous studies is relatively consistent with the "students should timely reflect and summary" in the interview materials, and 56. 67% of pre-service mathematics teachers can realize this point. The "teachers should pay attention to the cultivation of students' mathematical thoughts and methods" mentioned in previous studies is relatively consistent with the "teachers should pay attention to the inspiration of students' thoughts and methods" in interview materials, and only 30% of pre-service mathematics teachers can realize this point. The "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of classic examples and multi-solution of one problem" mentioned in previous studies is relatively consistent with the "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of typical examples" in the interview materials, and only 20% of pre-service mathematics teachers can realize this point. The two points mentioned in previous studies, "teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' examination ability" and "teachers should select exercises and pay attention to variable exercises", were only mentioned once each, that is to say, almost all pre-service mathematics teachers did not realize these two points. "Teachers should pay attention to the teaching of basic knowledge (concepts, theorems and formulas, etc.)" and "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of problem-solving steps, methods and skills" mentioned in previous studies have not been mentioned by pre-service mathematics teachers. According to the data, although 71. 43% of the seven countermeasures can be recognized by the majority of pre-service mathematics teachers, except for the view that "teachers should let students pay attention to reflection, review and summary (wrong questions, knowledge points, etc.)", the remaining proportion is low. 28. 57% of the views are not realized by the majority of pre-service mathematics teachers.

From the comparison of the survey results of pre-service mathematics teachers and the previous studies, it can be seen that the three viewpoints of "teachers should let students

pay attention to reflection, review and summary (wrong problems, knowledge points, etc.), "teachers should pay attention to training students' mathematical thoughts and methods" and "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of classic examples and multiple solutions to one problem" can be recognized by some pre-service mathematics teachers. Almost no one can realize that "teachers should pay attention to cultivating students' examination ability", "teachers should select exercises and pay attention to variable exercises", "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of basic knowledge (concepts, theorems and formulas, etc.)" and "teachers should pay attention to the teaching of problem solving steps, methods and skills".

Mathematical thoughts and methods refer to the basic concepts, principles and ideas adopted in solving mathematical problems, which can help us understand and explore the structure of mathematical problems and point out the direction of solving problems. Li believes that teachers need to strengthen the penetration of mathematical ideas to help students correctly understand mathematics and effectively solve problems (Li, 2024).

Examples of mathematics are the application of mathematical knowledge, the means to help students understand and consolidate mathematical knowledge and form basic mathematical skills, and the main channel for students to master problem-solving skills and techniques. In the course of teaching, most of the mathematical ideas and methods are reflected in the examples explained by the teacher. Multiple solutions to one problem can fully mobilize students' thinking enthusiasm, improve students' ability to use knowledge to solve problems, and help students' thinking divergence and creative thinking training. By changing the condition, conclusion or form of the problem, variable training enables students to deeply understand mathematical concepts and master problem-solving skills in the process of solving different problems, so as to improve students' mathematical literacy and problem-solving ability.

5. 2. 2 Rationality

In addition, some pre-service mathematics teachers also put forward some other views in terms of countermeasures:

Some pre-service mathematics teachers put forward the views of "students should preview before class", "students should listen carefully in class" and "students should communicate more with teachers and classmates", etc. These countermeasures may solve the phenomenon of "being able to understand but unable to solve" to a certain extent, but these countermeasures have not been implemented to the essence - how should we teach as teachers, that is, the countermeasures of teachers.

Guo believes that in teaching, teachers should reflect on the content of textbooks, students' learning situation, teaching process and other contents, so as to timely adjust teaching strategies according to the generation of classes, improving the effectiveness of teaching. However, under the constraint of exam-oriented education, most teachers focus their time and energy on knowledge teaching, examination paper commentary, homework correction and solution research, ignoring the value of reflection in teaching, which affects the improvement of teaching level(Guo, 2023).

6. Conclusion

Senior high school students often have the phenomenon of "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems in mathematics learning. Many scholars have done a lot of research on this phenomenon, and given some reasons and countermeasures. This paper takes them as a reference to study the pre-service mathematics teachers' understanding of "being able to understand but unable to solve" mathematics problems. To this end, a total of 30 graduate and undergraduate students in the School of Mathematics and Statistics of Shandong Normal University were selected for interview. After investigation, it is found that the majority of pre-service mathematics teachers agree with the reasons such as "students' insufficient grasp of knowledge", "students' rigid problem-solving ideas and no effective problem-solving strategies" and "teachers' lack of emphasis on problem-solving methods". "Teachers should let students pay attention to reflection and review and summary", "teachers should pay attention to training students' mathematical thoughts and methods" and "teachers should pay attention to classic examples and the teaching of multiple solutions to one problem" were recognized by most pre-service mathematics teachers. The majority of pre-service mathematics teachers have insufficient understanding of the comprehensiveness and rationality of the phenomenon. The research object of this survey is 30 education masters and

Commented [U16]: The author(s) needs to add implications of this study to teaching and learning before conclusions and recommendations. What is the further research question to this study?

undergraduates, and the sample distribution is concentrated in one university, and the sample size is not large. In the future, it is necessary to increase the number and scope of samples, ensure the objectivity and universality of investigation and analysis, and better help front-line teachers to solve problems in teaching.

Teaching ability is the core ability of normal university students for their future career development. As the backbone of basic education in the future, normal university students' teaching ability will affect the teaching level of basic education (Zhao, Lu, & Zhou, 2024). In order to improve the professional quality of pre-service mathematics teachers and build an excellent teacher team, based on the above findings, this paper gives some suggestions on the training of pre-service mathematics teachers:

(1) In the course of teaching should pay attention to the teaching of mathematical ideas.

Teachers should pay more attention to the teaching of mathematical ideas when they talk about the topic. After the implementation of the new curriculum standards, more emphasis is placed on the achievement of students' core literacy in mathematics, and the so-called core literacy refers to the essential character and key ability that students should have to meet the needs of lifelong development and social development. Mathematical thought can effectively improve students' mathematical ability and cultivate the quality of thinking, which is the key to improve students' core accomplishment. Students appear "being able to understand but unable to solve" phenomenon, it is very likely that the teacher in the course of teaching the topic did not fully emphasize the mathematical thoughts, nor deliberately train the students' mathematical thoughts.

(2) In the teaching of exercises, we should pay attention to the demonstration and summary of problem solving steps.

When teaching, teachers should pay more attention to the demonstration and summary of problem solving steps. Many students can understand the topics taught by the teacher in class and know what to do, but they still have problems when they do the questions independently. It is very likely that the teacher did not emphasize the method summary in place. Therefore, in the teaching of examples and exercises, teachers must pay attention to showing the steps of solving problems, and summarizing in time, which can help students form a good cognitive structure.

References

- Bai, X. Z. (2024). Research on the cultivation of students' problem-solving ability in high school mathematics teaching under the background of new curriculum. *College Entrance Examination* (08), 3-5. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SQrzcG6tI94M61G4rWo-VKVcTHm-ZJWO6dzHula9diyE034K0R3CmwP7LAsOSlfrmRP8MiWT_NQi1Zw_gKTdJp hQGt7STxkYqzut8FbYQXgUekXyO-kuMXX5ANet0kE_BhE_xmjbl2b5bwdbJ1gx11doKfVJ5n4s1H572iD0OsFf_NQ44yfNpWD&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Cairang, D. Z. (2023). Strategies to cultivate High school students' Problem-solving ability in Mathematics Teaching in High school. (eds.) *Proceedings of the Seminar on Teacher Team Construction and High-quality Education Development in the New Era (II)* (pp. 32-37). Luqu County Tibetan Middle School, Gansu Province; Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SR0Brx-iyDSC19nb3_5AEWyuMsrfZKgwHLF3KEymxJdjC5GCKGF9YcleRwFVka5cQ66PBcQ6WIWogT5vSGm2abMDCZlAqRdab6ldqOnGQuaf3-fA-SOId1cYuUn05JtbsceEx9-QB6HZjuaoBbqz13lslkYdAB05UVZqtXGG99p-lbA42o3ouX1j5VFhFmL_yQ=&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Cheng, X. M. (2024). A study on the teaching of high school math Exercises under the "Sea of Problems" strategy -- A case study of the unit "Equations of Lines and Circles". *Science Lovers* (05), 252-256. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SQfiLs-AQ0WItShoXsd-3XWnjrCoQScdaiDBOhy933zsexl17OAb-TPorBmtu7SdfGVLN7Am-hEvMEGQNg9pq01q6tSk0ctzKU82tOBFzQ3ho3FGj_lTrGBE7YXg_c7cpFeoTJns_sl2uyeiBQ4PqQZQoA4PRPOA0UUUb0uaGSVSobNO_J2N3U2AxE&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Fu, X. Y. (2023). Ways to cultivate high school students' mathematical problem-solving ability. *Research on mathematical and Physicochemical Solutions* (30), 35-37. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3STd__cZBB7MfVZqwPeS1AQfIm-HvIEMnvSn9w1AUgTQnR3fGN3flw0AF9CTu-poOU8R6s32nMBU1tGfTehB2zrFU-umozzG9ro7owbnSIQ3wS4GUEhMNRlb1fe8CsPdDK6KK1Zj5rgHG4XKF9xKqEtMPLwkYg4PjsA7w-Xzcdw230gW1yzqeBIKBLG&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Commented [U17]: I don't think this "retrieval link" is important, if it were DOI that would have been good.

Commented [U18]: I suggest these kind of links should be deleted on all the references!

- Guo, T. (2023). Let teaching reflection become a sharp edge to improve the effect of high school mathematics teaching. *Mathematics Teaching Communication* (33), 75-76. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SRsJY4_31a-YZ_4vOtINKAi-BzXj_dVu2PbtEtqI2xnPobTMEpTZwMFVmt1Nr-VH1FBUCt-mjXmccj9koZqwpLG093f_PoENuKJHJnyemtdHFJeOg-nlwRt9RFZRXcqxBVKHYWX-oGY9O310zn5bqqVAHBuZZI_VHudK80DCDf-CvjxGnbaNjCQj&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Huang, C. G. (2023). How to cultivate students' mathematical problem-solving ability. *Read and write* (29), 38-40. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SS_C51QbNY_DQ2epZrqcLVdl3Vqov1Bhm-bGZ3MnheZ3c7IT76DURDOLj2mpLTBn0BKKIk8uV0bW9zj5nx8LxnIO2oYKUcoVbaHmdsmx06fqmxrG9W1tAYD2Ed6GFcSWt4kGeFuP-ABF4DHbOcg1LETjr3y7Z1AnD5OTz1FOsqQEQT97sNmAs8ENx&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Huang, D. L. (2024). Strategies for Cultivating students' problem-solving ability in high school mathematics teaching. *Research on mathematical and Physicochemical solutions* (21), 36-38. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SR_OdBLiM-wfGlpniwpj7YpCpsgP4jC3plUUZfhoL-ZaQ6iDiMBt4oYZVZVCis7pyRSkelnRl43-HAb-NfoKgK0e4PwVW4_iSSrASPzSmFG-sB9DR28vyXeL3cP0jtYWkyKhJvR7B5cu-u95wDPH5yt70NLW57TqFLIZythSMhSg2V-UJDIfECm5k&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Li, B. Y. (2024). A brief discussion on strategies for solving math problems and improving learning ability of senior high school students. *Science and Technology World (High School Edition)*(05), 124-126. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SRflP8iI54wQnx4mJdLvAQvJf-Doz2vRQidwr8KTnhwUzb5Jt92hEOf5LNKyreK7JV7s7wLESv8tTNDsjf2mZTpfhIz1lr-i_o4hFQZJS8Q5IAdTxDtQ980dEjnujB6eYqzpV8LNtIp0mDPSAZs-cueDPFiWEVfoXFU_eonpa4W4rVQmnAj9gIr0p&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Li, C. Y. (2023). A practical inquiry on cultivating students' problem-solving ability in Mathematics teaching in high school. *References for Middle School Teaching* (27), 62-64. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3STPyP-

TnbHMAVM016nea2I4fnKufzuS9bdy_T2heqN5-r-Jk60Gv16-
UCnCMi4XUND8hF9o0EIGKD3harXrt632ioANNQx0e2cO-uIs5brlHs-
gfHP1WRhig7rThNfW_BbGB57nlxNs7Ik9fuAz46S_tObW-jcBQw0TwY-
VoLK11KRLTaDpFIT4X&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

- Li, D. D. (2024). Ways to cultivate high school mathematics problem-solving ability under the background of new college entrance examination. *Research on mathematical and Physicochemical Solutions* (27), 27-29. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SQHWpkX9KQsG_5QRp0NKx1hr4LmlkXojm17b74ZSKT7CHHgkqmwej9RsXPZvYd_ZUa0MSK9IGotR-sev6sh2z9A2ZSBf_GGbWERkEK-pBZLUv93Y1TrOyP21052x4ngdMIKBD_gxb0Kc3f_FbFdwTfDVGM-nOSoEjpdTRp4DLjdZj5Q_ZpnelAU6j&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Li, D. J. (2023). Research on the cultivation of students' problem-solving ability in Mathematics classroom teaching in high school. *Mathematics Learning and Research* (28), 116-118. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SR8tMEKxjIPVRFQ-W2qdgDtTqr7ZPz5KVcOvYINt0rFXFSBL7mUWj1z-Oe94vpHLOZgw_0Eq0eTGzLzFVaZorL4G_TijXfqvtTVVIUwD53egNWionOB-lod-kzs1BdLrML8wUMp6nG0jZ1nAMGohsJ3srw6KBQZfqbdYZ_qfRxWT_9vdaFCXqKYm&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Li, Y. F. (2023). Research on strategies for Cultivating students' problem-solving ability in high school mathematics classroom. *Mathematics Learning and Research* (19), 20-22. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SQ0to-JmCE_ylzMb0ccjrQTBBGMYfMcTwKo0cU2BmriR-WObrlKf9fdeJrx784C9vHZOMFkAzBVE0-Xyl8fKuVfbIY8ZaMe90E2kv71Gug75zvdprAZD4Ecj6HiCqQu94Oum_wBujBz7HBfLhA5FcgEzbyj1MTpozX9WZOjjwihs4U3ctL339-E&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Li, Y. Z. (2024). The effective penetration of mathematical thought in senior high school mathematics teaching. *Research on mathematical and Physicochemical solutions* (24), 46-48. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSQge_DFQ8s-7EWyQUYczL9yZICSoafjzw3NlaMMa5wK8g_cXjIEAo1p3frxGO2hmEI8Hx-ABSeQormXAwjR-8yh9mZDhMUOUjQXRxV3jCdg04NgTwUTdILGg-boj7zXo-CuzS_CpDIRo3tDBQ69XGAs1rKN4xHjQ84n8_d11xdkjv7DxPhQV75X&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

- Liang, F. , & Zhang, J. (2024). Strategies for developing high school Mathematical problem-solving ability under the background of Core literacy. *Research on mathematical and Physicochemical Solutions* (21), 21-23. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SRz700CiqUe89s8Enbb9u1mZiUi3rpQVSvaBX-AIoKBRLoWKnwbi4nG_PXRhRnldfQMnjAmo8eIzE-kGVFWy9q84NU6viKCX-wBlOkXXhV5dtz4YyTj9TtNzne1wmpgTCPkgQ4Py68-BGvNuzmmmkjxPak8nI6MaJpA1014mi2gul9fmlt2v2_xI7&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Liang, F. Y, (2023). Some understandings on how to cultivate and improve mathematical problem-solving ability. *Middle School Mathematics* (19), 26-27. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSFhbQ_Wx5FFTo_iokRFoYxhOj9-Jo8aVs4TVSav209MT8_S3iD2ZfjIKy-yyOjBBSm4UyW6gc1_5QdhEtW_ovmX8604xOwd9f7mWMr0eV-zLamyOQhFwE3qZt2aJoeI8FbdUCcQrN0IGPWmXSrFc6MqTayE7DiKPFK-SnXPOyW_P8rjoUdLc0PG2i&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Meng, Q. Y. (2024). Discussion on the strategy of training students' problem-solving ability in high school mathematics teaching. *Arts and Sciences Navigation (Middle)*(07), 85-87. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSryjQ45tWGeH_UX-ZCB3Z369_Pe7tdU_dAs-KVcKLyV212rHSShFnAyUkrg0YqHW6zutDD5GhDfQ8iVQ6JfuIN9XvSScY2StkhOBIOJykuz5WScnXageoIEDZuobr-WubkdKNA9b0GxuqA7DKaMuxxoKdFn0C4XQFFRMuXq-oT0psyjz7QzVoH_gN&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Ministry of Education of the People's Republic of China. *Ordinary High School Mathematics Curriculum Standards (2017 Edition, 2020 Revision)*. Beijing: People's Education Press, 2020. <https://www.ict.edu.cn/Uploads/File/2022/04/28/%E6%99%AE%E9%80%9A%E9%AB%98%E4%B8%AD%E6%95%B0%E5%AD%A6%E8%AF%BE%E7%A8%8B%E6%A0%87%E5%87%86%EF%BC%882017%E5%B9%B4%E7%89%882020%E5%B9%B4%E4%BF%AE%E8%AE%A2%EF%BC%89.20220428174241.Pdf>
- Tang, J. (2024). Strategies to cultivate students' problem-solving ability in high school mathematics teaching under the background of new curriculum. *Science and Technology World (High School Edition)*(13), 114-116. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3STrvuz8m9ybPpKbqoqMkjvbm4LIOSsF446lofYKY4wEMfCST-

e7crPYfhXPpvWCm_9R_2xYbzCHZ6q3hc2_3eVZat-
VsHctkfGXLnNz68vRo1PQSemQxIN0X_nDYS-
GdzcSqf4M6NuU6aHRwDTEIPNC1_LKI-
DahIh2gvPjZAgjL8M2rSsb0__M1&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Wang, S. (2024). How to Cultivate students' problem-solving ability in high school Mathematics teaching under the new curriculum. *Science and Technology World (Senior High School Edition)*(05), 90-92. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SRx1EwLsw-FIBV2WDe7VtBjHxvqh6VOMraz3PwNuuByPLmQcB4zKkSWPpFi4Lo-Rat6ndSHICSOKiW93BROPMExS_MaRtqW3xq5U3s9y99wAX-PQV8F9v0BJKUcw1Ev-zeDJ99UkJw1VN6Sdlcthn37lXdORkgK8M7sbF7w6mti_BMNaV1Ee02-HY6P&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Wang, Y. (2023). How to Cultivate students' problem-solving ability in high school Mathematics teaching under the new curriculum. *Science and Technology World (High School Edition)*(11), 38-40. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SR1iZd6KRy4WOyiHOLmd5fyEcPpxh1FahH1HaoBPJbX2BVo44yiItM8zqxTt9vHVKNCo3--jZ80T_0dk37-PHYBTPYsNPbj6FqJg-skEeGsZa5Zuh2HzJF0mIHnp5IMdE9kKOr5Gqamn62oX-lyshVhrwSHXa2pj1L_jCYfRjsa_Ou-tcMXThkpm&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Wu, B. , & Wu, J. H. (2024). Effective Strategies for developing high school Mathematical problem-solving ability under the background of Core literacy. *Research on mathematical and Physicochemical solutions* (06), 5-7. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSLTSbIDpt9CufhzJ_wNKlaiaeV7G-v0OCfEbLHwdC40jGHajHiIFUsl04TPQCIHZ2xpFQgMwrZlah-zefk_5DdBcwGjoTqc3TApeDYGOiKLTZ_RWt5HFdK-_hw9uymDKJ06ge8rQAYxoiC4zqxeRvpywQX96mTqZyT-E8wM7wgAJtdjTA_BYUia&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Yan, T. S. (2024). Research on the cultivation of students' problem-solving ability in Mathematics teaching in high school. *Science and Technology World (High School Edition)*(11), 116-118. Retrieved from https://kns.cnki.net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSJ4V62krEF-CGJcTRTwFRb60nnksEg_9kLbPIbsA2Dj52DZO_jZzcST2jhUaY-pPr7i3m5CTMm8aZ8opB2s6JlGoWNEJZVwKZ8nCWkqfxrIpxwQ1lg21mCcXeOKhjsivAuPLC56anLsMirfCFXyZhJvdZkyCuAdw5i7Pn8ZjpZUG-4ooO-OUs0pX&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

- Yang, F. M. (2024). Research on effective strategies for expanding the thinking of mathematical problem solving in high school. *Friends of Mathematics* (11), 79-81. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnuedu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SQbmXB6YyVPjMObdAAat-FrJdcZL89IRYSQ4O2Sj38wNXGr6hObVW2ox-LzcdasxrjRraE1tnp1WfdDgvhaKBC_X9pvmGkigVAhKEqvkleTwANt-a11OU-ZLbXH_gTtmwdAiskJmjPjxJ6evahefinky_my-jtCC5qYPJeqMD9GeW-PMulXbbwycgLSsz&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Yang, L. (2023). Training of students' problem-solving ability in mathematics teaching in high school. *Research on mathematical and Physicochemical solutions* (30), 29-31. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnuedu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSyQD6Zsljvt_0k1P0an7SnI3XVFXfHQsg8n_GRJLI4dD8xbvEcyzbU0Rta0km19FcbU6glukCgkXP-3UYbrG7-gKuaUum1Y10Lhkvoz-cwgfhasiIG8LIJy-MEm4qhf9OICCBn-kVICEz3IA-doGh0mlrEA815v0FAgq4tKGHicD82w4qZ6A4Oj-&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Yang, L. J. (2024). How to improve students' problem-solving ability in high school Mathematics teaching. *Weekly* (08), 68-70. The doi: 10.16657/j.carolcarrollnkiissn1673-9132.2024.08.023. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnuedu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3STDYGtfAjy-XuqgRbmh1BUUQwdXV5wAr7ScI4YJxeL98s2VVPBYNeAV5dGQq_C6LQoTQO2Ckg19cZj9UKrrSqGMIE24GiY8iTKhmj9-v-aw15xhTZ9592dpoGhk7PHZp3iqNDU_oSkPHp2R3EydPEk5RwlUdV7GDJ53weE8Z8QuEH69cseiYZTYd&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Zhang, G. J. (2023). Analysis on strengthening of students' problem-solving ability in Mathematics classroom teaching in high school. *Science and Technology World (High School Edition)*(11), 80-82. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnuedu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSkPs_HYYsi-UDeKA-vZq3B9khP3XTdQ5IOTmPF1Wy2cigSvJtxHVd0ifEcSaaZiZ2Xk03YodI-oMDfrqVoV3I5GnF3-wVHB6TNXQFN27uGV3yI5_v4fGjtxTd0d1ihQ5D4kfOr434PW8O0luRCQvbAGTAOcgOHZaXEX-EL64qS_6SSbAFC4QHxc&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS
- Zhao, G. X. (2023). Training of Students' problem-solving ability in high school mathematics teaching under the background of new curriculum. *Middle School Curriculum Counseling* (22), 78-80. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnuedu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSPkXC3_gsT_YjYSR-3qVqjYzdizjzl7f6bzNjFEz8zYpn5kMu6AV2c6Slaah7k_FK-ANraihVp8aJYFN-6mtQEL_oCSrYx4vDTxvIIfdIn6eVdJJjofZVrFwBwpl_JPqJM1mBZS5u430q8C

hTigxWrXz5etqwM5kNI2aFqWiFM-kfqH655-dK&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Zhao, H. T. , Lu, M. X. , & Zhou, Y. Y. (2024). Cultivation of teaching ability of Mathematics normal college students from the perspective of Core Literacy. *Journal of huaibei vocational and technical college* (03), 69-72. The doi: 10. 16279 / j. carol carroll nki cn34-1214 / z. 2024. 03. 026. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SQqNxjbevRoNKHTxD4kSSC1r3beh6lX89pt46IdmN5zKMfJpcu6AHn7R9BOss7q3MyRFkUD92-pJD-flyEEmjTpCyd5EH5aBosPh7Yo1atxWZsbhVNOCKo37yF9AkxTxCMf4O-SfxIvzTdMMgct2DpPf-aq8OUEm810AcJ3t-rPaVmScGRCLAqh3&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Zhou, C. H. (2023). Exploring how to cultivate students' problem-solving ability in high school mathematics classroom teaching. *High school Mathematics, Physics and Chemistry* (S1), 85-86. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SSUXxVIK5YyFhIYHTaCbmlQET-AWpeLtlvIS1gVsj6MHgMH4lzH39TBgplm5sT-0kdIrmWnIT-R0u51xows_1RCA-VlihkV29b7JhAo9_KegSvNNAOFvuS8t4HPQM-OKcA7CntbRzlbxgrItVB-prHUucAxYrIQ2D9qdfQZOOE7MkdF7TEkjicu&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Zhu, X. K. (2023). Effective Strategies for improving high school math problem-solving ability. *Friends of Mathematics* (19), 44-46. Retrieved from https://kns_cnki_net.libwg.sdnu.edu.cn/kcms2/article/abstract?v=ZkvsKdWJ3SQybP4j2FC0GFFz_XUNGYzmmrkzAIcrQKdLXD0k0aWe8Qz9SWjE7Uuv2RRNaUnML3Dvs2rjKivUK8PiaQwuN9vScrAiaXsxn4huWAYch-NYwTWQiwFDv0i8HMboOcD08TSrLdui64Y1ACogcJ8qgO374QNrvwceG853LUBxhgE73SVRRsxjamXT0&uniplatform=NZKPT&language=CHS

Commented [U19]: Check this article source very well.

Commented [U20]: The link does not open the article.